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PREFACE.





In an age so prolific in works of

local history as ours, no apology need be offered for publishing this History

of Lowell.




Successors of the Pawtucket and

Wamesit Indians, — heirs of the founders of American Manufactures, —

contemporaries of the men of the "Legion of Honor," who went hence to

defend the Nationality of America, and who, dying on the field of battle, have

risen to enduring renown; — the people of Lowell are to-day in possession of a

certain body of memories and traditions, not current elsewhere, but kept alive

here by local associations, by the presence of historical objects, and by the

local press.




Of these memories and traditions

Lowell is justly proud.




From them her people receive an

educational stimulus not to be despised. She would no more part with these

local reminiscences than Plymouth would part with her Pilgrim history, or than

New York would forget those Knickerbocker memories, among which the genius of

Irving is enshrined forever.




To gather and embalm all that

seemed most valuable in this heritage of memories and traditions, has been the

object of the present work, which covers the whole period from the discovery of

the Merrimack River by De Monts, in 1605, to the year of Grace 1868.




The first edition, or rather the

original germ, of this work, was published in 1856. With the aid of a mass of

materials laboriously gathered during the last twelve years, I may hope that

the value of the work has been greatly increased. The narrative has been

thoroughly revised, and very much enlarged.




Several engravers of established

reputation were employed to execute illustrative cuts. Many of these are well

done, but some are so badly executed that, perhaps, an apology is due for their

insertion in these pages; and others have been rejected altogether.




Materials were at hand for a much

larger volume, or even for several volumes; but I have aimed to be concise, —

considering Moses, who, in two lines, chronicled the creation of a world, (pace

Colenso,) a much better model for the local annalist than he who filled several

volumes with the burning of a Brunswick Theatre.




How far I have succeeded in the

accomplishment of this self-imposed task, my readers must judge; and they will

form the most charitable judgments, who best appreciate the great difficulties

under which such a task must be prosecuted. If I have not wholly failed of my

purpose, the work will possess attractions for all who are identified with

Lowell, and perchance may descend to the Lowellians of the Future, and be read

with interest hereafter, when he who wrote it shall have passed away.




The Author.




March, 1868.




CHAPTER I.




FROM THE DISCOVERY OF THE

MERRIMACK TO THE INTRODUCTION OF MANUFACTURES.




 




Herodotus, with fine felicity,

calls Egypt a gift from the Nile. In a similar sense, Lowell may be called a

gift from the Merrimack. Her history, also, may be well begun with that noble

artery of nature, the waters of which move the great wheels of her industry.




Long after America was upheaved

from the bosom of the Atlantic, a chain of lakes occupied the valleys of the

Merrimack and its tributaries, from the mountains to the sea.




Proofs of this appear in the

alluvial formation of these valleys, the shapes of their basins, their outlets,

their different levels, and the stratified character of the soil. One of these

lakes extended westward from Pawtucket Palls; and the limits of several others

may be easily defined. But long before the dawn of history, and probably long

before man appeared on the earth, the attrition of the waters in the channels

of these lakes, by widening and deepening their outlets, gradually diminished

their depth, and at length left their basins dry.




The draining of these lakes

increased the volume of water which the Merrimack rolled down to the main.




The head of the Merrimack is at

Franklin in New Hampshire, where the Winnepesawkee, the outlet of the lake of

that name, unites with the Pemigewasset, an artery of the White Mountains. Like

all the great rivers on the Atlantic slope, the Merrimack pursues a southerly

course. But after following this course from Franklin to Tyngsborough, a

distance of eighty miles, the Merrimack, unlike any other stream on the

Atlantic, makes a detour to the north-east, and even runs a part of the way

north-west. It is obviously unnatural that, after approaching within twenty

miles of the head-waters of the Saugus, as the Merrimack does on entering

Massachusetts, it should suddenly change its course, and pursue a circuitous

route of more than forty miles to the sea. If the history of by-gone ages could

be restored, we should probably find the Merrimack discharging its burden at

Lynn, and not at Newburyport.




Changes like this, however, are

not unfamiliar to geologists.




Sometimes they have been caused

by earthquakes, but more often, in these latitudes, by ice-gorges. 0 Whether

this deflection in the course of the Merrimack was caused by subterranean

convulsions, or by the formation in the old channel of an ice-blockade, cannot

now be known; but the fact of the change is unquestionable.




 The discovery of the Merrimack

took place under the auspices of Henry the Fourth, commonly called Henry the

Great, whose reign forms one of the most brilliant eras in the annals of

France. In 1603, Pierre Du Gua, Sieur de Monts, one of the ablest of the

Huguenot chiefs, obtained a patent from this king, creating him

Lieutenant-General and Vice-Admiral, and vesting in him the government of New

France, which embraced all our Eastern and Middle States, together with the

Dominion of Canada. On the seventh of March, 1604, De Monts sailed from Havre

with an expedition for colonizing "Acadia," as his new dominions were

called. He arrived on the sixth of April, and began at once the great work of

exploration and settlement. While talking with the Indians on the banks of the

river St. Lawrence, in the ensuing summer, he was told by them that there was a

beautiful river lying far to the south, which they called the Merrimack. The

following winter De Monts spent with his fellow-pioneers on the island of St.

Croix, in Passamaquoddy Bay, amid hardships as severe as those which, sixteen

years later, beset the Pilgrims at Plymouth.




On the eighteenth of June, 1605,

in a bark of fifteen tons, — having with him the Sieur de Champlain, several

other French gentlemen, twenty sailors, and an Indian with his squaw, — De

Monts sailed from the St. Croix, and standing to the south examined the coast

as far as Cape Cod. In the course of this cruise, on the seventeenth of July,

1605, he entered the bay on which the city of Newburyport has since arisen, and

discovered the Merrimack at its mouth. The Sieur de Champlain, the faithful

pilot of De Monts, and chronicler of his voyages, has left a notice of this

discovery in a work which ranks among the most romantic in the literature of

the sea.




Inclosing this notice Champlain

says: "Moreover, there is in this bay a river of considerable magnitude,

which we have called Gua's River."| 




Thus De Monts named the Merrimack

from himself; but the compliment was not accepted. Regardless of the name with

which it was baptized by its discoverer, the Merrimack clung, with poetic

justice, to the name which it received from the Indians long before the flag of

the Vice-Admiral floated over Newburyport Bay. The visit of Admiral De Monts,

like that of Capt. John Smith in 1614, was attended with no result.




Other renowned names were yet to

be inscribed on the list of the visitors of the Merrimack. But its song was the

song of Tennyson's brook: — 




"For men may come and men

may go, 




But I roll on forever."




The King had stipulated, in his

patent of New France, that De Monts should establish in Acadia the Roman

Catholic creed, ("la foy catholique, apostoliqite et romaine ;") a singular

condition indeed, considering that De Monts was a Protestant, and that Henry

himself was only a "political Catholic."




The expenses of the three

expeditions which he sent to New France were ruinous to De Monts. Cabals were

formed by his enemies; neither the loftiest motives nor the finest abilities

could save him; and the tragic death of Henry by the dagger by Ravaillac, in

1610, completed his ruin as a public man.




He died about the year 1620.0 In

1635, thirty years after the discovery of the Merrimack, the Concord, which the

Indians called the Musketaquid, assumed a place in civilized history; the fame

of its grassy meadows and of the fish that swarmed in its waters attracting

settlers from England, who established themselves at Concord. From a period too

remote to be determined by either history or tradition, until after the great

Indian Blague of 1617, Pawtucket Falls on the Merrimack, and Wamesit Falls on

the Concord, were the sites of populous villages of Pawtucket or Pennacook

Indians, who, indeed, remained, though with greatly diminished numbers, in the

present territory of Lowell, forty years after the plague. Here, in

spring-time, from all the circumjacent region, came thousands of the dusky sons

and daughters of the forest, catching, with rude stratagem, their winter's

store of fish. Here they sat in conclave round the council fire. Here they

threaded the fantastic mazes of the dance. "Here was the war-whoop

sounded, and the death-song sung; and when the tiger strife was over, here

curled the smoke of peace."




The Pawtuckets, or Pennacooks,

were among the most powerful tribes in New England, numbering, after the

plague, several thousand souls. Their territory stretched almost from the

Penobscot to the Connecticut, and included the whole of New Hampshire, a part

of Massachusetts, and a part of Maine.




At the head of this tribe, the

first English settlers found the sagacious and wary Passaconaway, who, in 1644,

after more than twenty years' observation of the progress of the English

settlements, signed an agreement which is still preserved, renouncing his

authority as an independent chief, and placing himself and his tribe under the

colonial authorities. In 1647, the Rev. John Eliot, "the Apostle of the

Indians," began a series of missionary visits to this place, which were

continued by him till the villages of Wamesit and Pawtucket ceased to be. In

1656, Major-General Daniel Gookin was appointed Superintendent of all the

Indians under the jurisdiction of the Colony, among whom were the Indians living

here.




Thus a sort of Indian Bureau was

established, not unlike the Freedmen's Bureau of a later day. The Apostle Eliot

and Judge Gookin won the entire confidence of the Indians, being about the only

white men that came among them who did not come to rob them.




In 1652, Captain Simon Willard

and Captain Edward Johnson, under a commission from the colonial government,

ascended the Merrimack in a boat, and surveyed the valley as far as Lake

Winnepesawkee. A new impetus was given to the work of settlement, which, as

early as 1653, reached the vicinity of Lowell. On the twenty-ninth of May,

1655, the General Court incorporated the town of Chelmsford, and also the town

of Billerica. To secure the Indians from being dispossessed of their lands, on

which they had erected substantial wigwams, made enclosures, and begun the

business of agriculture, Eliot, in 1653, procured the passage of an act by the

General Court, reserving a good part of the land on which Lowell now stands to

the exclusive use of the Indians. The bounds of Chelmsford, and also of this

"Wamesit Indian Preservation, were modified and enlarged by the General

Court in 1656 and in 1660. About 1665, a ditch, traces of which are still

visible, was cut to mark the bounds of the Indian reservation; beginning on the

bank of the Merrimack, above the Falls, and running thence southerly, easterly,

and northerly, in a semi-circular line, including about twenty-five hundred

acres, and terminating on the bank of the Merrimack, about a mile below the

mouth of the Concord.




The year 1660 was signalized by

an event claiming notice in this narrative, though it is uncertain whether it

took place here or where Manchester now stands: the retirement of Passaconaway.

Burdened with the weight of about four score years, this veteran chief gave a

grand though rude banquet, which was attended by a vast concourse of chiefs,

braves, and other Indians of every degree, together with a representation of

the new race that was now claiming the ancient abode of the red man.

Transferring his sachemship to his son, Wannalancet, the old chief made a

farewell address, of which we have the following report, — which is, perhaps,

as trustworthy as the reports of speeches in the pictured pages of Livy: — 




"I am now going the way of

all the earth; I am ready to die, and not likely to see you ever met together

any more. I will now leave this word of counsel with you: Take heed how you

quarrel with the English. Harken to the last words of your father and friend.

The white men are the sons of the morning. The Great Spirit is their father.

His sun shines bright about them. Never make war with them. Sure as you light

the fires, the breath of heaven will turn the flame upon you and destroy

you."




The local sachem of this place

during several succeeding years was Numphow, who was married to one of

Passaconaway's daughters. But in 1669, Wannalancet and the Indians of Concord,

New Hampshire, fearing an attack from the Mohawks, came down the Merrimack in

canoes, took up their abode at Wamesit, and built a fort for their protection

on the hill in Belvidere, ever since called Fort Hill, which they surrounded

with palisades. The white settlers of the vicinity, participating in this dread

of the Mohawks, shut themselves up in garrison houses.




In 1674, Gookin computed the

Christian Indians then in Wamesit at fifteen families, or seventy-five souls,

and the adherents of the old faith, or no-faith, at nearly two hundred more. At

this time, the Indian magistrate, Numphow, the archetype of Judge Locke and

Judge Crosby, held a monthly court, taking cognizance of petty offences, in a

log cabin, near the Boott Canal. An Indian preacher, Samuel, imparted to his

clansmen his own crude views of Christianity at weekly meetings in a log chapel

near the west end of Appleton street.




In May of each year came Eliot

and Gookin, who held a court having jurisdiction of higher offences, and gave

direction in all matters affecting the interests of the village. Numphow's

cabin was Gookin's court-house, and Samuel's chapel wasEliot's church. Wannalancet

held his court as chief in a log cabin near Pawtucket Falls.




In 1675, came King Phillip's War,

during which Wannalancet and our local Indians, faithful to the counsels of

Passaconaway, either took part with the whites, or remained neutral.




Their sufferings in consequence

of this were most severe.




Some of them were put to death by

Phillip for exposing his designs; some of them were put to death by the

colonists as Phillip's accomplices; some fell in battle in behalf' of the

whites; while others fell victims to the undiscriminating hatred of the low

whites, whose passions, on the least provocation, broke out with hellish fury

against the "praying Indians."




In one instance, in 1676, when

all the able-bodied Indians had fled to Canada, and when six or seven aged

Indians, blind and lame, were left here in wigwams, too infirm to be removed, a

party of scoundrels from Chelmsford came to Wamesit by night, set fire to these

wigwams and burned all the invalids to death. What is worse, so depraved was

public sentiment during that period, these wanton and cowardly murderers were

allowed to go unpunished. It was impossible to find a jury that would return a

verdict of guilty against a white man who had killed an Indian, no matter under

what circumstances of atrocity the murder had been committed.




During this war the white

settlers in this region were gath ered for protection in garrisons. Billerica

escaped harm; but Chelmsford was twice visited by the partisans of Phillip, and

several buildings were burned. Two sons of Samuel Varnum, living in what is now

Dracut, were shot while crossing the Merrimack with their father in a boat.




In April, 1676, Captain Samuel

Hunting and Lieutenant James Richardson, under orders from the Governor and

Council, erected a fort at Pawtucket Falls, in which a garrison was placed,

under command of Lieutenant Richardson. A month later, the garrison was

reinforced, and Captain Thomas Henchman placed in command. This put an

effectual check to the incursions of Phillip's party in this part of the

colony.




When the war was over, and

Wannalancet returned to Wamesit with the remains of his tribe, he found his

corn fields in the hands of the whites, and he himself a stranger in the land

of his fathers. By order of the General Court, he and his people were placed on

Wickasauke Island, in charge of Colonel Jonathan Tyng of Dunstable. In 1686,

Colonel Tyng, Major Henchman, and others, purchased of Wannalancet and his

tribe all their remaining lands in this region, leaving them only their rights

of hunting and fishing. At length, after passing through various vicissitudes,

and doing numerous acts of kindness in return for the injuries which the

colonists had inflicted on him, Wannalancet joined the St. Francis tribe in

Canada, and ended his days among them.




During the nine years of King

William's War, which followed the English Revolution of 1688, the people of all

the towns of this region again took refuge in forts and fortified houses. The

fort at Pawtucket Falls was occupied by a garrison under command of Major

Henchman. But this did not entirely save them. On the first of August, 1692, a

party of Indians, in league with the French in Canada, made a raid into

Billerica, and killed eight of the inhabitants. On the fifth of August, 1695, a

similar party made a raid into what is now Tewksbury, and killed fourteen of

the people. A party of three hundred men, horse and foot, under Colonel Joseph

Lynde, scoured all the neighboring country in vain, in search of the foe. From

this officer, Lynde's Hill in Belvidere derives its name — he having fortified

it, and for some time occupied it with his command.




In 1701, the town of Dracut was

incorporated. It contained twenty-five families, and had previously formed a

part of Chelmsford. It took its name from a parish in Wales, the original home

of the Varnums.




Subsequent to the "Wamesit

Purchase," made by Tyng and Henchman, already mentioned, the lands of the

Indian Reservation were purchased in small parcels by various persons, who

settled upon them as upon other lands in Chelmsford. But in 1725, when Samuel

Pierce, who had his domicil on the Indian Reservation, was elected a member of

the General Court, he was refused his seat, on the ground that he was not an

inhabitant of Chelmsford. Thereupon the people of East Chelmsford, as Wamesit

was then called, refused to pay taxes to Chelmsford; and to remedy this

mischief, an act was passed annexing Wamesit to that town.




On the twenty-ninth of October,

1727, occurred the greatest earthquake ever known in this country. Walls and

chimneys fell, and all the towns on the Merrimack suffered severely.




In 1734, the General Court

incorporated the town of Tewksbury, the territory of which had previously

belonged to Billerica. It took its name from the English parish of Tewksbury,

on the Severn, in Gloucestershire, so famous in history as the scene of one of

the bloodiest battles in the "Wars of the Roses." There the partisans

of the House of York, under Edward the Fourth, and the partisans of the House

of Lancaster, under the Amazonian Margaret, Queen of Henry the Sixth,

encountered each other's battle-axes for the last time. There, after the

battle, a Prince of Wales was barbarously murdered by two royal Dukes. There

the glory of the royal House of Lancaster was eclipsed in blood.




In 1745, occurred the siege and

capture of Louisburg. To the army which Sir William Pepperell led from

Massachusetts against that renowned fortress, belonged young John Ford, and

perhaps others, from what is now Lowell.




At the battle of Bunker Hill, two

companies of Chelmsford men, one under Captain John Ford, the other under

Captain Benjamin Walker, and one company composed largely of Dracut men, under

Captain Peter Colburn, were present, and acquitted themselves with credit.

There are two traditions connected with this event which must not be lost,

notwithstanding the gigantic battles of the late Rebellion have thrown all the

engagements of the Revolution into the shade. It is said that when the first

man in Ford's company fell, his comrades, then for the first time under fire,

were seized with panic; but thereupon one of Ford's officers began to sing Old

Hundred in a firm voice, and this so reassured the men that they gave no

further sign of panic. The other tradition of this battle is, that, just as the

ammunition of the Americans was exhausted, and orders were given to retreat, a

British officer mounted the breastworks, and, with a flourish of his sword,

exclaimed, "Now, my boys, we have you." Hearing this, Captain Colburn

of Dracut picked up a stone, about the size of a hen's egg, and, throwing it

with all his might, hit the officer in the forehead, knocking him down

backwards. The Captain and his men then hastily retreated with the rest of the

American forces.




In November, 1776, committees

from all the towns of this region met in convention at the house of Major

Joseph Varnum in Dracut, and petitioned the colonial legislatures of

Massachusetts and New Hampshire for a law to regulate prices, which had been

fearfully enhanced by the Revolutionary War, then pending. The proceedings of

this convention show that its members participated in that ignorance of the

principles of political economy, which was universal till the time of Adam

Smith, and which is by no means dispelled in the days of John Stuart Mill.




This region has the honor of

having contributed one of the most useful, though not one of the most

brilliant, statesmen who served the American Colonies in their struggle for

national independence — Simeon Spaulding of Chelmsford. He was a Colonel of

Militia when the duties of the Militia, and the protection which it afforded,

made that office one of real importance. From 1771 to 1775 he was a member of

the General Court. From 1775 to 1778 he served in the Provincial Congress, and

during one of these years was Chairman of the Committee of Public Safety. He

was also a member of the Convention of 1779, which framed the State

Constitution. He died in 1785.




During Shay's Rebellion, in 1786,

a body of Chelmsford Militia served under General Lincoln in the western counties;

and "on the memorable thirtieth of January," as Allen writes,

"performed a march of thirty miles, without refreshment, through deep

snows, in a stormy and severely cold night; a march that would have done honor

to the veteran soldiers of Hannibal or Napoleon."




The people of Chelmsford, from

the earliest period of their local history, gave every encouragement to

millers, lumbermen, mechanics, and traders, making grants of land, with

temporary exemption from taxation, to such as would settle in their town.

Accordingly, Chelmsford became distinguished for its saw-mills, grist-mills,

and mechanics' shops of various kinds.




Establishments of the same kind

also arose in Billerica, Dracut and Tewksbury.




It is but fair, though far from

flattering, to record the fact, that the mother towns of Lowell were among the

last to abandon slavery. Till near the beginning of the present century, negro

slaves were kept on what is now the Moor farm, and also on what afterward

became known as the Livermore place, where Phillip Gedney, a former British

Consul at Demarara, then resided.




Toward the close of the last

century, this region became the theatre of an active business in wood and

lumber. The forests along the shores of the Merrimack, which had never before

rung with the sound of the woodman's axe, afforded an exhaustless supply of

materials for rafts, which already commanded a good price at Newburyport and

other towns on the sea-board. But the descent of the river at Pawtucket Tails

was so precipitous, — the current so violent, and the channel so rocky, — that

great difficulty was experienced in passing rafts down the rapids. A canal

round the falls for the passage of boats, rafts and masts was first suggested

for the convenience of the lumbermen, thirty years before anyone dreamed of

using the waters for the purpose of manufactures; though from about the time of

the Revolution there had been a saw-mill below Pawtucket Palls, driven by the

Merrimack. It was owned about this time by John Tyng of Tyngsborough, a Judge

of the Court of Common Pleas.




In 1792, Dudley A. Tyng, William

Coombs, and others, were incorporated as "The Proprietors of the Locks and

Canals on Merrimack River." They at once proceeded to open a canal, one

and a half miles long, connecting Merrimack River above the falls with the

Concord below. The level of the 'water in the lower end of the canal, a brief

distance above the mouth of the Concord, was thirty-two feet lower than the

level of the water at the upper end. The descent was accomplished by means of four

sets of locks. The canal occupied less than five years in its construction, and

cost fifty thousand dollars.




When the first boat passed down

the canal in 1797, with the directors and other gentlemen on board, and

hundreds of men, women and children as spectators on the banks, an incident

occurred, of which Allen gives a very lively account.




One side of the canal gave way;

the water burst upon the the people, and the greatest confusion ensued.

"Infants were separated from their mothers, children from their parents,

'wives from their husbands, young ladies from their gallants; and men, women,

timber, and broken boards and planks, were seen promiscuously floating in the

water." Nantes — rari apparent in gurgite vasto. But no life was

lost, and no serious injury incurred.




The stock of the Locks and Canals

Company was divided into five hundred shares, owned by individuals in Middlesex

and Essex Counties. But the dividends declared were never considerable; and the

stock soon fell far below par in consequence of the successful competition of

the Middlesex Canal with the business.




In the same year that the Locks

and Canals Company were incorporated, Parker Varnum of Dracut and others were

incorporated as "The Proprietors of the Middlesex Merrimack River

Bridge," and the first bridge across the Merrimack was constructed by them

at Pawtucket Falls. It was entirely of wood. Previous to this time, the only

public conveyance over the Merrimack was by a toll ferry-boat. The Concord had

been bridged nearly twenty years earlier.




In 1793, the Proprietors of the

Middlesex Canal were incorporated. Mr. Weston, an eminent English engineer, was

employed to survey the channel of the canal; and Loammi Baldwin of Woburn

superintended its construction, and was the animating soul of the work. This

canal began on the Merrimack, about a mile above Pawtucket Palls, extended

south by east a distance of thirty-one miles, and terminated in Charlestown. It

was completed in 1804, and cost seven hundred thousand dollars. It was

twenty-four feet wide and four feet deep, and was fed by Concord River. In

digging this canal, pine cones and charcoal were found, twelve feet below the

surface, specimens of which were long exhibited in the Museum at Cambridge. The

excavations made for this canal, and also those previously made for the

Pawtucket Canal, disclosed unmistakable proofs that the channel of the

Merrimack, in this vicinity, was once a considerable distance south and west of

its present situation — that the Merrimack formerly ran by the southwest side

of Port Hill, instead of by the northeast side.




This Canal was the first in the

United States that was opened for the transportation of passengers and

merchandise; and some are still living who were often passengers in the neat

little packet-boat, "Governor Sullivan," which plied between Boston

and Lowell, through the waters of the Middlesex Canal, occupying nearly the

whole day in the passage. Connecting Boston with the upper Merrimack, the

channel of which was navigable the entire distance from Pawtucket Falls up to

Concord, it formed an important artery for the lumber business, which had long

been very extensive here, as well as for the new industries then in process of

development. Vast quantities of timber grown around Winnepesawkee Lake, on the

Merrimack and its branches, and on Massabesic Pond, and the produce of a great

extent of fertile country, were transported to Boston by this canal. The first

boat voyage from Boston, by the Middlesex Canal and the Merrimack River, to

Concord, (N. H.), was made in the autumn of 1814. The first steamboat from

Boston reached Concord in 1819. Had this canal been kept open until now, it is

difficult to see why it might not still be profitably conducted. But its day

has gone by, and its history may as well be ended here as hereafter.




As the competition of the

Middlesex Canal ruinously reduced the value of the property of the Pawtucket

Canal, so, in the retributive justice of years, other competition — the

introduction of railroads — extinguished the value of the stock of the

Middlesex Canal. A striking example of " the revenges of history." In

1853, navigation was discontinued in the canal, and soon afterward portions of

its banks were levelled, and parts of the channel filled up, The income of the

stock hardly averaged three and a half per cent.; and the proprietors, hopeless

of any better dividends, disposed of all their saleable property, and abandoned

their franchise, of which they had once been proud. On the third of October,

1859, the proprietors were declared, by a decree of the Supreme Judicial Court,

to have forfeited all their franchises and privileges, by reason of

non-feasance, non-user, misfeasance and neglect.




Thus was the corporation forever

extinguished.


















 




CHAPTER II.




 




INTRODUCTION OF MANUFACTURES.




 




The rise of the modern Factory

System marks one of the grandest epochs in the progress of mankind. The arts of

carding, spinning, weaving, bleaching, dyeing and printing cotton, woolen and

linen fabrics, have been practiced from the remotest ages of history, and were

practiced in pre-historic times. Scarcely a century has elapsed since these

arts were pursued as mere domestic handicrafts. No progress of moment had been

made in them, no new implements had been introduced, for a thousand years. But

during the closing forty years of the last century, these arts were raised from

a state of utter insignificance to a national and world-wide importance, and

were developed into the most elaborate and mature system of industry the world

has ever seen.




As the great inventions which

wrought this wonderful change were achieved long before the building of Lowell,

a rapid account of them will be all that the purposes of this history require.

But they can hardly be passed unnoticed, for without them Lowell must have

remained a border hamlet of an obscure town.




The first modern invention that

led to any important improvement in manufacturing, was John Kay's fly-shuttle,

patented in 1733, but strange to say, not introduced into this country for more

than fifty years after it was first used in England.




In 1738, Lewis Paul obtained a

patent for the first machinery for spinning, — invented, several years before,

by John Wyatt. In 1740, manufacturing was commenced at Manchester, England. In

1748, Paul obtained a patent for the first cylinder carding-machine. In 1758,

he obtained another patent for improved machinery for spinning.




In 1760, Robert Kay invented the

drop-box, by which filling of different colors could be used in weaving with

the fly-shuttle. In the same year, James Hargreaves constructed a

carding-machine corresponding substantially with the carding-machines now in

use. Two years later, Hargreaves obtained a patent for the spinning-jenney,

which, however, seems to have been invented, in 1764, by Thomas Highs.




In 1769, Richard Arkwright

obtained a patent for his spinning frame or throstle. Six years later, he

obtained another patent for improvements in carding, drawing and spinning. In

1779, Robert Peel, father of the celebrated statesman, obtained a patent for

improved machinery of the same kind. In the same year, Samuel Crompton combined

the excellencies of Hargraves' jenny with Arkwright's throstle, in a new

spinning-machine, which, from its hybrid nature, he called a mule.




These triumphs of inventive skill

led to the substitution, first, of horse-power for hand-power, and then of

water-power for horse-power. The year 1789 was signalized by the application of

steam-power to manufacturing purposes, one of James Watt's engines being

introduced in a factory in Manchester.




In 1785, the Rev. Samuel

Cartwright took out his first patent for the power-loom. Other similar patents

were afterward taken out by him and by others; but power-loom weaving realized

only partial success until after the dressing-frame had been invented by Radcliff,

Ross and Johnson in 1803; and 1806 is the accepted date of the successful

introduction of the power-loom into Manchester in England.




In 1785, Thomas Bell obtained his

patent for cylinder printing. Calico printing, however, bad been introduced by

the Claytons, twenty years before. In the same year, Berthollet first applied

chlorine (then called dephlogisticated muriatic acid) to bleaching. But

Scheele, a Swedish chemist, had discovered the properties of chlorine in

destroying vegetable colors, ten years prior to its application by Berthollet

in France.




Thus, as an able writer says,

"while Burke was lamenting the fall of chivalry, while Hastings was

extending the British Empire in the East, and while Pitt was initiating his

retrograde policy, men of that class which was destined to reap the most

benefit from the transformation, were inaugurating the industrial system,

destined to succeed the first, utilize the second, and destroy the third. From

the weaver's cottage at Blackburn, and from the barber's shop at Preston, went

forth powers as pregnant with consequences to Britain [and to the world] as

ever issued from the Parliament-House at Westminster, or the Council-Chamber in

Bengal." Other nations followed. In France, the genius of Napoleon introduced

the Cotton Manufacture, including yarns, cloths, and prints. "Before the

Empire, the art of spinning cotton was not known in France; and cotton clothes

were imported from abroad."




These inventions of the

mechanical genius of Europe soon found their way to the United States. The

first machinery for carding and spinning cotton put in operation in this

country, was started at Beverly, in Massachusetts, in 1787, and was driven by

horse-power. Other cotton factories were soon afterward established in

Connecticut, Rhode Island, New York, Pennsylvania, Delaware and New Jersey. But

the year 1793 — the same year in which Eli Whitney gave to the world his

invaluable legacy of the Cotton Gin — is the generally accepted date of the

Cotton Manufacture in the United States, since it was during that year that

Samuel Slater — " the father of the Cotton Manufacture in America" —

started his first cotton factory, with Arkwright machinery, driven by

waterpower, at Pawtucket in Rhode Island. By a singular coincidence of dates,

in the same year, the first factory in this country, for carding and spinning

wool by machinery, was started at Byfield in Massachusetts.
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